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1. MANAGER'S REPORT 
For the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

 
 

TYPE OF FUND 

 
Growth Fund. 

 
 

CATEGORY OF FUND 

 
Equity Fund.  
 

 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE 
 
The objective of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (“PMEGF”) is to provide investors with high 
capital growth over the medium to long-term through investments in high growth and situational 
stocks*. 
 
*Situational stocks are referring to stocks that the prices may be affected arising from a certain situation. For example in a situation of 
merger and/or acquisition, the share prices of the acquiring and/or acquired companies may go up or down significantly compared to the 
prices during the normal days. 

 
Any changes in the investment objective of this Fund would require the approval of the unitholders 
of this Fund. 
 
Achievement of Investment Objective 
 
The Fund was managed within its investment objective and has achieved the Fund’s target in 
generating consistent and gradual growth. For the financial period under review, the Fund gained 
27.1% vis-à-vis a gain of 9.3% in FBM Emas Index benchmark. 
 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund is an aggressive equity growth fund, which will invest minimum 
70% and maximum 95% of its assets in a diversified portfolio of equities and equity-related 
securities. The fund will maintain a minimum of 5% in liquid assets.  
 
 

PERFORMANCE BENCHMARK 

 
The Fund is benchmarked against FBMEmas Index obtainable from Bloomberg and 
www.bursamalaysia.com. 
 
*The benchmarking against the FBMEmas Index is only for comparison purposes and does not construe to indicate that the Fund will 
outperform the index at all times. Investors should note that the risk profile of the Fund is different from the risk profile of the benchmark. 
*The FBMEmas index was used as the closest benchmark for reference to measure how the Fund performed. 

 
 

DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

 
As the Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund aims to achieve capital growth, distribution of income 
from the Fund will be of secondary importance. Distribution from the Fund, if any, will be reinvested 

http://www.bursamalaysia.com/
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into additional units based on the NAV per unit on payment or distribution date for purposes of 
capital growth. 

  
 

FUND PERFORMANCE 
 
During the period under review, the Fund gained 27.1%, outperforming the FBM Emas index which 
was gain 9.3%. Our fund’s outperformance can be attributed to our strategy to position the fund in 
small-mid-cap construction and exports oriented stocks which have done well during the period 
under review. Furthermore, our investment technology and commodities related stocks have also 
performed well. At end-June 2017, the fund’s equity exposure stood at 72.41%. 
 
Performance of PMEGF vs FBM Emas (Since inception till 30 June 2017) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Source: Bloomberg 

 

  Fund performance from June 2016 – June 2017 

   

 30.06.2017 30.06.2016 % change 

 RM RM  

Total NAV 19,675,227 6,568,920 +199.52 

 NAV/unit 0.9811 0.7748 +26.63 

 
  (Source: Financial statements Audited by Deloitte PLT for the financial period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. Financial Statements for 
preceding years were audited by Ernst and Young)  

 

Top Five Investments 

 

30 June 2017 30 June 2016 

Securities % Securities % 

George Kent 3.64 MagniTech 8.05 

Homeritz 3.61 Gadang 8.04 

SKP Resources 3.37 Maybank 3.99 

Gadang 3.32 Pecca 3.87 

Green Packet 2.91 OCK 3.68 
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DETAILS OF DISTRIBUTION AND UNIT SPLIT 

 
 For the period under review, the fund made a 1:1 unit split on 26 May 2017. With this unit split, 

investors will receive additional 1 unit for every 1 unit held, while maintaining the value of their 
holdings. PMEGF NAV per unit before split was RM1.9567 and total units before split was 
8,711,960. After the 1 for 1 unit split, PMEGF NAV per unit was decreased by half to RM0.9784 and 
total units increased to 17,423,920. The total NAV after unit split was same as the NAV before unit 
split which was RM17,046,936 as at 26 May 2017.  
            
            

MARKET REVIEW 
 
In the month of Jul-16, BNM unexpectedly cut the overnight policy rate (OPR) for the first time in 
seven years as softer global macroeconomic outlook could weigh on domestic growth prospects. 
The market did take the announcement well and the FBM KLCI rallied temporarily, particularly 
property counters, which have been weak for quite a considerable amount of time. However, Fitch’s 
downgrade of Petronas long term current rating to “A-“from “A” rating previously, with a stable 
outlook put caution to the wind as investors scaled back on their risk appetite. 
 
As soon as the US Presidential election results in Nov-16 were announced, the Asian equity 
markets had swooned on knee-jerk reactions to Trump’s surprise win. There was uncertainty 
clouding the unexpected result as the markets priced in the increased uncertainties. Foreign money 
unrelentingly flowed out of the Malaysian markets causing the ringgit to weaken further. On the 
contrary, the US S&P 500 and Dow Jones Industrial Average continued scaling upwards toward the 
highly coveted 21,000 level.  
 
The ringgit, one of the best-performing currencies in ASEAN in 1Q16 turned to be the second-worst 
performing currency in ASEAN for 2016. The increased volatility of ringgit with acute depreciation, 
we believe, was primarily caused by weaker crude oil prices and the US election outcomes. With 
the narrowing premium of emerging market yields over the US, carry trades funded in USD are 
unwinding and triggering outflows from emerging currencies including ringgit. Additionally, the 
tightening of restrictions on trading non-deliverable forward (NDF) by Bank Negara Malaysia had 
also temporarily dampened investor sentiment. 
 
However, since the turn of 2017, we started to observe a pickup in global growth recovery on the 
back of promising global economic activities. As for the FBM KLCI, The year started with an 
encouraging gain of 7.4% for 1H17 after taking a terrible beating in the previous couple of years, 
affected by weak crude oil prices, slump in ringgit and the 1MDB scandal. Foreign money started to 
have renewed interest in the Malaysian markets as they saw it extremely undervalued hence a net 
inflow of RM10.2bn for the first six months of 2017 snapping up the Malaysian shares.  
 
The better market performance was also due to better corporate results being posted after earnings 
grew in the second half of 2016 following four consecutive quarters of contraction from 3Q15 to 
2Q16. In particular, those in the downstream oil and gas, plantations, banking and utility sectors 
posted improved results, though telecommunication companies did not live up to expectations as 
they posted  disappointing results.  Malaysia’s exports returned to the growth path since November 
last year, and the pace has exceeded 20% since February this year. Our country’s GDP growth has 
gathered steam this year with the economy growing at 5.6% in the first quarter of 2017.  
 
In the 1H17 we also witnessed a significant moment as Malaysia and India ink pacts worth 
RM158bil (higher than the RM144bil deal between Malaysia in China).  Other significant event that 
added positive vibes to the market was the signing of the digital free trade zone agreement. The 
Digital Free Trade Zone (DFTZ) was launched on the 22nd of March, in conjunction with the visit by 
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd's Jack Ma. This would definitely prove a catalyst to shipping, packaging 
and parcel delivery companies.  FGV once again hogged the limelight for the wrong reason with the 
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suspension of few of its top management on alleged corruption. Also due to the early Ramadhan 
this year, there was slight profit taking during the month of June.  During the financial year under 
review, the FBMKLCI closed at 1,763.67 while the FBM Emas closed at 12,598.94, rose 6.6% and 
9.3% respectively. 

 
 

MARKET OUTLOOK 
 
In the US, the Federal Reserve (Fed) has given an early hint that interest rates normalization  will 
be carried out over the next few years where interest rates will be raised three times each year up 
to 2019.  Thus far this year, the Fed has raised interest rates by 25bps for the second time in the 
first three months of 2017 as promised on the back of a strong economic run. The Fed has also 
indicated to cut its holdings of bonds and other securities this year, signaling its confidence in the 
US economy recovery and strengthening job market. US markets have scaled to even greater 
heights and to uncharted territories in anticipation that President Donald Trump reflationary policies, 
of corporate income tax rate to 15% from 35% and fiscal spending, will help to further boost 
corporate earnings and further strengthen the US economy. The reflation theme was taken very 
positively by the investing community and seems to be broadening beyond the US shores, with 
economic and corporate earnings growth estimates generally being revised higher, especially in 
Europe and Asia. However, President Trump has yet to deliver his fiscal reforms and this could 
potentially spell disappointments for the markets should investors run out of patience in waiting for 
him to fulfill his promise. This could well be a reason for ending the US bull market, which may have 
a negative repercussion on global markets. 

 
China economy expanded at the fastest pace, breaking a four-month decline and marking the 
highest PMI reading since. The Chinese economy accelerated stronger-than-expected to 6.9%, 
driven by strength in housing, infrastructure investment, exports and retail sales. The economy is 
on track to contribute positively, without worsening credit risks which has been a concern to the 
economists on the nation’s towering debt burden. International financial market experts remained 
optimistic in the future of the economy. This bode well with the market and economic optimism. 
 
Japan and Eurozone have both come out of recession and are on right track of a sustainable 
recovery. Japan’s economy, boosted by the recovery in global trades (that has helped driven its 
export growth) and public spending ahead of the 2020 Olympics, has witnessed five consecutive 
quarters of positive growth for the first time since 2006. The outlook for the Eurozone has also 
improved as deflation risk has subsided while the improving job market that has bolstered 
household income and consumer spending. Eurozone real GDP improved to an annualized rate of 
1.9% in 1Q17 on the back of improving domestic consumption and business investments as well as 
pick-up in exports. We believe the prospects of the Eurozone for 2017 will be boosted by improving 
global outlook, receding political and disintegration risk, low interest rate, a stable currency and the 
end of austerity for some economies in the EU bloc. 
 
On the local front, the Overnight Policy Rate (OPR) was maintained at 3.0% and the decision was 
within expectation as the encouraging growth momentum for the first quarter 2017 is likely to be 
sustained for the rest of the year. Domestic and global trade activities are on upward trajectory. The 
Foreign Exchange Reserves has recovered to USD98bn amid the requirement by Bank Negara to 
convert 75% of exports proceeds into ringgit and the return of foreign funds into the country.  The 
trade performances from January to April give reasons to believe that the uptrend in global trade 
activity could sustain for the rest of the year, with exports recording double digit growth for 5 
consecutive months. With all these factors considered, the 2017 GDP growth is likely to end above 
5.0% which is above the official target of 4.8%. 

  
 
 



 

 

Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund  Page 6 

 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
The Malaysian economy is anticipated to grow more rapidly, this has given us reason to believe the 
stock market will continue to advance in tandem with the return of foreign fund inflows and a much 
improved domestic economy.  The equity markets did start to display signs of volatility since the 
end of June.  We believe this is a healthy consolidation following consecutive months of strong 
surge before the market is ready for the next up movement.  However, we continue to favor the 
small- and mid-cap stocks, which we have higher weighting, to outperform the broader market. We 
will take advantage of the current market weakness to buy on dips and to switch and invest more 
on selected stocks that have not moved but have strong fundamentals intact and reasonable 
valuations. 
 
 
The construction sector is one of the picks of the year 2017, with key infrastructure projects being 
rolled out and some leaning towards the execution phase while more tender results will to be 
announced in 2H17. This will definitely spur the sector to greater heights. We personally prefer 
small mid-capped stocks with a strong order book and a great execution track record.  We also like 
export-oriented stocks as the pickup in global trades and the weak ringgit will bode well for export 
theme. 
 
Lastly, the Malaysian 14th General Election (GE) is also a significant event that will definitely have 
massive impact on the markets, we must keep in mind that it must be called by 22 June 2018. 
Usually the market tends to perform well prior to a general election as there is more positivity in the 
markets as a more people friendly budget will usually be in place. Given all the reasons above, after 
weighing the pros and the cons that the world markets and the Malaysian markets are susceptible 
to, we believe that our local benchmark index will close in green this calendar year after fallin into 
the red for the past 3 years consecutively.  
 

 

ASSET ALLOCATION OF THE FUND AS AT 30 JUNE 2017 

 
The asset allocation of the Fund is as follows: 
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Comparative table covering last 3 financial years for industry sector  

Sector June 17 % June 16 % June 15 % 

Cash & Other Liquid Assets 27 10 21 

Consumer Products 8 10 5 

Properties 1 0 0 

Plantations 0 3 4 

Infrastructure Project Co. 0 1 2 

Trading / Services 14 22 16 

Construction 18 15 5 

Industrial Products 15 19 11 

Finance 2 11 21 

Technology 3 0 0 

Warrant/TSR 5 2 0 

Collective Inv Scheme 0 0 0 

Ace Market 5 6 14 

Unquoted Fixed Income Sec 0 0 0 

Loan Stock 1 1 1 

Second Board 0 0 0 

Trust 1 0 0 

TOTAL 100 100 100 

 

The asset allocation reflects the opportunity in value buys after the dislocation in the financial 
markets. 
 

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE FUND 

 
For the period under review, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund not 
otherwise disclosed in the financial statements. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF CIRCUMSTANCES THAT MATERIALLY AFFECT ANY INTEREST OF THE 
UNITHOLDER 

 

For the period under review, there were no circumstances that materially affect any interest of the 
unitholder. 
 

BREAKDOWN OF UNIT HOLDINGS BY SIZE 

 

Units No. of Unitholder % Unit holdings % 

5,000 & below 718 67.99 526,999 2.63 

5,001 to 10,000 110 10.41 774,194 3.86 

10,001 to 50,000 163 15.44 3,281,130 16.36 

50,001 to 500,000 59 5.59 9,413,742 46.94 

500,001 & above 6 0.57 6,058,969 30.21 

Total 1,056 100.00 20,055,034 100.00 

 
SOFT COMMISSION RECEIVED FROM BROKERS 
 
During the period under review, we neither received soft commission nor rebates from any brokers 
by virtue of transaction conducted by the Fund. 
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2. TRUSTEE'S REPORT 
To the unit holders of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund  
For the financial year ended 30 June 2017 
 
 
We, CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad ("the Trustee"), being the Trustee of Phillip Master Equity 
Growth Fund ("the Fund"), are of the opinion that Phillip Mutual Berhad ("the Manager"), acting 
in the capacity as Manager of the Fund, has fulfilled its duties in the following manner for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2017. 
 
a) The Fund has been managed in accordance with the limitations imposed on the 

investment powers of the Manager and the Trustee under the Deed, the Securities 
Commission Malaysia’s Guidelines on Unit Trust Funds, the Capital Markets and Services 
Act 2007 (as amended from time to time) and other applicable laws; 
 

b) Valuation/pricing of units of the Fund has been carried out in accordance with the Deed 
and relevant regulatory requirements; and 
 

c) Creation and cancellation of units has been carried out in accordance with the Deed and 
relevant regulatory requirements. 

 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of 
CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad (313031-A) 
 
 
 
 
 
Lee Kooi Yoke 
Chief Operating Officer 
 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 
28 August 2017 
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3. STATEMENT BY MANAGER 
  For the financial year ended 30 June 2017 
 
 

We, Datin Hajjah Nona binti Salleh and Prof. Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Ir. Jamilus bin Md. Hussin, being 
two of the Directors of Phillip Mutual Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Manager, 
the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 13 to 34 are drawn up in accordance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the Securities Commission Malaysia Guidelines on Unit Trust Funds in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund as at 30 June 
2017 and of its financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows for the financial year 
then ended. 
 
For and on behalf of the Manager 
Phillip Mutual Berhad 

 
 
 
 
 

 

DATIN HAJJAH NONA BINTI SALLEH                       PROF. TAN SRI DATO' (DR) IR.  
                                                                                       JAMILUS BIN MD. HUSSIN 

 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 
28 August 2017
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Independent auditors’ report to the Unit holders of 
Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (“the Fund”) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (“the Fund”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017 and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies as set out on pages 13 to 34. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Fund as at 30 June 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Securities Commission Malaysia Guidelines on Unit Trust 
Funds in Malaysia. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 
 
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 
 
We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the By-Laws (On Professional Ethics, Conduct 
and Practice) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA 
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the said By-Laws 
and the IESBA Code. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
 
The Manager of the Fund is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements of the 
Fund and our auditors’ report thereon. 
 
 
(Forward) 
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Our opinion on the financial statements of the Fund does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Fund, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements of the Fund or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Manager's and Trustee's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 
 
The Manager of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Fund that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the Securities Commission Malaysia Guidelines on Unit Trust 
Funds in Malaysia. The Manager is also responsible for such internal control as the Manager 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Fund that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
The Trustee is responsible for ensuring that the Manager maintains proper accounting and other 
records as are necessary to enable true and fair presentation of these financial statements. 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Fund, the Manager is responsible for assessing the 
Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either intends to 
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Fund as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in 
Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International 
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 

Fund, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 
 
 
 
(Forward) 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedure that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements of the Fund or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 

Fund, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 
Other Matters 
 
1. This report is made solely to the unitholders of the Fund, as a body, and for no other 

purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards any other person for the contents of 
this report.  

 
2. The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2016 were audited by 

another firm of auditors whose report dated 26 August 2016 expressed an unmodified 
opinion, and are presented here for comparative purposes only. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DELOITTE PLT (LLP0010145-LCA) 
Chartered Accountants (AF 0080) 
  
 
 
 
 
 
SITI HAJAR BINTI OSMAN 
Partner – 03061/04/2019 J 
Chartered Accountant 
 
28 August 2017 
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 30 June 2017 

 

    2017  2016  
 Note   RM  RM  
        
Assets        
        
Investments  3   14,351,714    5,861,389   
Amount due from stockbroking companies    41,812    418,693   
Amount due from Manager 4   145,915    1,165   
Tax recoverable     227    -   
Dividend receivable    14,360    17,996   
Interest receivable    301   -  
Other receivable    159    159   
Cash at bank    5,158,934    1,682,998   

        
Total assets    19,713,422  7,982,400  

        
Liabilities        
        
Amount due to Manager 7   23,471    1,394,898   
Amount due to Trustee    1,500    3,000   
Other payables 5   13,223    15,582   

        
Total liabilities    38,194   1,413,480   

        
Unit holders' equity        
        
Unit holders' capital    16,955,716    5,946,658   
Retained earnings     2,719,512    622,262   

        
Total equity/Net asset value ("NAV")  

attributable to unit holders 
 

6 
   

19,675,228  
  

6,568,920 
 

        
Total equity and liabilities    19,713,422   7,982,400   

        
Number of units in circulation 6(a)   20,055,034   4,239,214   

        
NAV per unit    0.9811         1.5496  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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6. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 
 

   2017  2016 
 Note  RM  RM 
      
Income      
      
Dividends   149,102   83,466  
Net realised gain on sale of investments   1,301,486   360,128  
Gain on sale of bond    -    1,822  
Net unrealised gain on changes in fair value of  

financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss ("FVTPL") 

   
 

956,372  

  
 

20,061  
Interest income   36,631   6,771  

      
   2,443,591    472,248  

      
Expenses      
      
Manager's fee  7  145,682    81,869  
Trustee's fee 8  18,250    18,300  
Auditors' remuneration      

- current year   7,849    8,200  
- prior year (over)/under-provision   (550)   200  

Tax agent's fee   8,004    7,203  
Administration fees and expenses   167,106    59,005  

      
   346,341  174,777 

      
Net income before tax   2,097,250    297,471  
Income tax expense 9   -    1,561  

      
Net income after tax, representing total 

comprehensive income for the year 
   

2,097,250  
  

 299,032  

      
Net income after tax is made up of the 

following: 
     

   Net realised income   1,140,878    278,971  
   Net unrealised income   956,372    20,061  

   2,097,250    299,032  

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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7. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

As at 30 June 2017 
 
 

  
 

Unit Holders’ 
Capital 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Total 
Equity 

  RM  RM  RM 

       

As at 1 July 2015   4,144,643    323,230    4,467,873  
Total comprehensive income for 

the year 
  

 -  
  

 299,032  
  

 299,032  
Creation of units   4,275,490    -    4,275,490  
Cancellation of units   (2,473,475)   -    (2,473,475) 

       
As at 30 June 2016   5,946,658   622,262    6,568,920  

 

As at 1 July 2016   5,946,658    622,262    6,568,920  
Total comprehensive income for 

the year 
  

 -  
  

 2,097,250  
  

 2,097,250  
Creation of units   13,806,122   -   13,806,122  
Cancellation of units   (2,797,064)   -    (2,797,064) 

       
As at 30 June 2017  16,955,716   2,719,512    19,675,228  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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8. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

As at 30 June 2017 
 
 

 2017  2016 
 RM  RM 
    
Cash flows from/(used in) operating and investing 
activities 

   

Proceeds from sale of investments 11,778,802   4,761,382  
Purchase of investments  (17,634,388)    (6,418,985) 
Dividends received  152,738   59,416  
Interest income  36,330   6,771  
Manager's fee paid  (151,237)   (71,615) 
Trustee's fee paid  (19,750)   (19,859) 
Payment of other fees and expenses  (184,768)   (101,398) 
Tax paid, net of tax recovered (227)   5,857  

 
Net cash used in operating and investing activities 

  
(6,022,500) 

  
 (1,778,431) 

    
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities    
Proceeds from creation of units 13,661,372   4,274,428  
Payments for cancellation of units  (4,162,936)   (1,113,679) 

    
Net cash generated from financing activities 9,498,436    3,160,749  

    
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,475,936    1,382,318  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,682,998   300,680  

    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5,158,934   1,682,998  

    
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:    
Cash at bank 5,158,934   1,682,998  

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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9. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 
 
(1) The Fund, the manager and their principal activities 

 
Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (hereinafter referred to as “the Fund”) was constituted 
pursuant to the execution of a Master Trust Deed dated 18 March 2003 as supplemented by 
the Supplemental Deeds dated 19 May 2003, 6 June 2003, and 3 August 2009 between 
Phillip Mutual Berhad as the Manager and CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad as the Trustee. 
The Fund was launched on 18 June 2003. 
 
The principal activity of the Fund is to invest in a portfolio of investments that provide 
investors with high capital growth over the medium to long term through investment in high 
growth and situational securities. 
 
The Manager, Phillip Mutual Berhad, is a company incorporated in Malaysia. The Manager is 
principally engaged in the management of unit trust funds. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Manager 
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 28 August 2017. 

 
(2) Summary of significant accounting policies 

 
2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”) as issued by the Malaysian 
Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”), International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the Securities Commission Malaysia Guidelines on Unit Trust Funds in Malaysia. 
 
The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies. Historical cost is 
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 
 

2.2  Changes in accounting policies 
 

 Adoption of Standards and Amendments to MFRSs 
 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial 
year except for revised MFRSs and Annual Improvements issued by the MASB that 
are relevant to the Fund's operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2016, as follows: 
 

Amendments to 
MFRS101 

Disclosure Initiative 

Amendments to 
MFRSs   

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 

 
 

The adoption of the amended MFRSs and Annual Improvements did not have any 
impact on the financial statements of the Fund. 
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(2)      Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

2.2  Changes in accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

Standards and Amendments in issue but not yet effective 
 

As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the new and revised 
Standards and Amendments relevant to the Fund which were in issue but not yet 
effective and not early adopted by the Fund are as listed below: 
 
  

 
 
Description 

Effective for 
annual periods 

beginning on or 
after 

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by 
IASB in July 2014) 

1 January 2018 

MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 
MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 
Amendments to 
MFRS 107 

Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 

Amendments to 
MFRSs 

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014 - 
2016 Cycle 

1 January 2017 

 

The Manager of the Fund anticipates that abovementioned Standards and 
Amendments will be adopted in the annual financial statements of the Fund when 
they become effective and that the adoption of these Standards and Amendments will 
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Fund in the period of initial 
application except as disclosed below: 
 
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
 
In November 2014, the MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces 
MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous 
versions of MFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and 
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. 
 
Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. 
The adoption of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of 
the Fund's financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of 
the Fund's financial liabilities. 
 

2.3 Accounting estimates and judgements 
 
The preparation of the Fund’s financial statements requires the Manager to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 
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(2) Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

2.3 Accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d.) 
 

Judgements made in applying accounting policies 
 
In the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies, the Manager is of the 
opinion that there are no instances of application of judgement which are expected to 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The Manager believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, 
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
 

 2.4 Financial assets and liabilities 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. 
 
i) Financial assets 

 
The Fund determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, 
and the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
("FVTPL") and loans and receivables. 
 
When financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date, they are measured 
at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not at FVTPL, directly attributable 
transaction costs. 
 
Financial assets are derecognised on the trade date when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership. 
 

 Financial assets at FVTPL 
 

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL if they are held 
for trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial 
assets held for trading are those acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the near term.  
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured 
at fair value. Changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are 
recorded in "Net unrealised gain or loss on changes in fair value of financial 
assets at FVTPL". Interests earned from such instruments are recorded 
separately in "Interest income". 
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(2) Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities (cont’d.) 
 

i) Financial asset (cont’d.) 
 

 Loans and receivables 
 

The Fund does not have any loans throughout the financial year. Financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as receivables. Such receivables include amounts 
due from brokers and the Manager and other receivables. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, receivables are measured at amortised cost. 

 
ii) Impairment of financial assets 

 
The Fund assesses at the reporting date whether there is any objective evidence 
that a financial asset is impaired. 
 

 Financial assets at FVTPL 
 

Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial 
difficulties of the issuer or obligor and the disappearance of an active 
trading market are considerations to determine whether there is objective 
evidence that investment securities classified as financial asset at FVPTL 
are impaired.          
 
If a financial asset at FVTPL is impaired, an amount comprising the 
difference between its cost and its current fair value, less any impairment 
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to 
profit or loss. 
   
Impairment losses on financial assets at FVTPL are not reversed in profit or 
loss in the subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
iii) Classification of realised and unrealised gains and losses 

 
Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial 
instruments for the period and from reversal of prior period’s unrealised gains and 
losses for financial instruments which were realised (i.e. sold, redeemed or 
matured) during the reporting period. 
        
Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as part 
of ‘at FVTPL’ are calculated using the weighted average method. They represent 
the difference between an instrument’s initial carrying amount and disposal 
amount. 
 

iv) Financial liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability. 
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(2) Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

2.4 Financial assets and liabilities (cont’d.) 
 

iv) Financial liabilities (cont’d.) 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at 
amortised cost. The Fund includes in this category amounts due to the Manager 
and the Trustee and other payables. A financial liability is derecognised when it is 
settled. 
 

2.5 Unit holders’ capital 
 
The Unit holder's contributions to the Fund are classified as equity instruments. 
 

2.6 Statement of cash flows 
 
The Fund adopts the direct method in the preparation of statement of cash flows.  

 
Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

 
2.7 Income 

 
Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Fund and the income can be reliably measured. Income is measured at the 
fair value of consideration received or receivable.  
 
Dividend income is recognised when the Fund’s right to receive payment is 
established.  
 
Interest income, accretion of discount and amortisation of premium are recognised 
using the effective interest method. 

 
2.8 Taxation 

 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered   from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rate and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.  
 
No deferred tax is recognised as no temporary differences have been identified. 
 

2.9 Distributions 
 
Distributions are at the discretion of the Manager. A distribution to the Fund’s Unit 
Holders is accounted for as a deduction from realised reserves, either in the form of 
cash or units in the Fund. A proposed distribution is recognised as a liability in the year 
in which it is approved. 
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(2)  Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 

 
2.10 Functional and presentation currency 
 

The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Fund operates ("functional currency"). The financial 
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is also its functional 
currency. 
 

(3) Investments 
 

Investments consist of quoted equities and an unquoted bond. 
 2017 2016 
 RM RM 
At fair value:   

Quoted equities 14,247,496  5,764,601  

Unquoted bond 104,218  96,788  

 14,351,714  5,861,389  

 
    Quoted equities as at the reporting date are as detailed below: 

 
2017                

 
Quantity 

 
Cost 

     Fair 
value 

Per cent of 
NAV 

  RM RM % 
Trading/services     
Bumi Armada Bhd  518,000  425,883  391,090  1.99  
Datasonic Group Bhd 20,000  24,400  24,600  0.13  
George Kent (M) Bhd 174,000  618,001  716,880  3.64  
Oldtown Bhd 107,400  290,720  307,164  1.56  
Pestech International Bhd 292,700  468,452  468,320  2.38  
Samchem Holdings Bhd 369,000  338,118  337,635  1.72  
Tenaga Nasional Bhd 14,000  188,920  197,960  1.01  
Century Logistics Holdings Bhd 283,200 327,373  390,816            1.99  

  2,681,867  2,834,465  14.42  

     
 Industrial products     
Evergreen Fibreboard Bhd 519,900  501,740  434,117  2.21 
Kossan Rubber Industries Bhd 41,000  258,042  261,170  1.33 
Magnitech Industries Bhd 43,200  177,552  326,160  1.66 
Press Metal Bhd 161,000  297,225  431,480  2.19 
Serba Dinamik Holdings Bhd 261,500  533,617  520,385  2.64 
Skp Resources Bhd 510,700  665,196  663,910  3.37 
Top Glove Corporation Bhd 57,800  286,675  332,350  1.69 

  2,720,047 2,969,572 15.09 

     
Construction     
Ekovest Bhd 297,000  367,807  353,430  1.80 
Gabungan AQRS Bhd 354,500  402,397  496,300  2.52 
Gadang Holdings Bhd 498,500  478,792  653,035  3.32 
Hock Seng Lee Bhd 217,200  362,104  351,864  1.79 
Jaks Resources Bhd 320,000  428,565  454,400  2.31 
Kerjaya Prospek Group Bhd 40,000  100,743  130,400  0.66 
Malaysian Resources Corp Bhd 269,000  381,973  371,220  1.89 
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(3) Investments (cont’d.) 
 

 
2017 (con’t.)                                     

 
Quantity 

 
Cost 

Fair  
value 

Per cent 
of NAV 

  RM RM % 
     
Construction (cont’d.)     
Pesona Metro Holdings Bhd 393,000  259,597  255,450  1.30 
Yong Tai Bhd 270,000  335,950  372,600  1.89 

  3,117,928  3,438,699  17.48 

     
 Finance     
Tune Protect Group Bhd 319,300 468,179  395,932  2.01 

  468,179  395,932  2.01 

     
Technology     
Green Packet Bhd 1,661,000 573,118 573,044  2.91 

  573,118 573,044  2.91 

     
Consumer Products     
Homeritz Corporation Bhd 767,100  751,972  709,568  3.61 
O&C Resources Bhd 789,200  473,520  493,250  2.51 
Poh Huat Resources Hldgs Bhd 160,000  282,385  312,000  1.59 

  1,507,877 1,514,818 7.71 

     
Properties     
Malton Bhd 205,000 236,004  282,900  1.44 

  236,004  282,900  1.44 

     
Trust     
Quill Capita Trust 200,000 240,000  258,000  1.31 

  240,000  258,000  1.31 

     
     
Ace Market 
Borneo Aqua Harvest Bhd 

     
333,000 256,410 246,420   1.25 

JF Technology Bhd 164,100  148,058  321,636  1.63 
Perak Transit Bhd 1,450,000  255,750  449,500  2.28 

  660,218 1,017,556  5.16 

 
Warrant 
Bimb Holdings Bhd-WA 21,800 10,570 

 
 

7,630  

 
 

0.04 
Genting Bhd-WA 100,000  173,310  162,000  0.82 
O&C Resources Bhd-PA 3,678,000   680,050  514,920  2.62 
Pesona Metro Holdings Bhd-WC 694,900   278,336  277,960  1.41 

  1,142,266  962,510  4.89 

     
Total equities quoted in 
Malaysia  13,347,504 

 
14,247,496 72.42 
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(3) Investments (cont’d.) 
 

 
2016 

 
Quantity 

 
Cost 

Fair  
value 

Per cent 
of NAV 

  RM RM % 

     

Trading/services 
    Berjaya Auto Bhd      58,000  110,200  133,980  2.04 

Bumi Armada Bhd    150,000  182,976  108,000  1.64 

Datasonic Group Bhd 103,700  153,671  130,662  1.99 

Genting Bhd 21,600  183,769  176,688  2.69 

Pecca Group Bhd 159,000  225,780  254,400  3.87 

Pestech International Bhd 36,000  209,561  240,480  3.66 

Tenaga Nasional Bhd 9,000  119,520  126,720  1.93 

    
1,185,477  1,170,930  17.82 

       Industrial products 
    Evergreen Fibreboard Bhd 120,000  143,998  127,200  1.94 

KNM Group Bhd 495,000  261,304  202,950  3.09 

Kossan Rubber Industries Bhd 30,000  192,580  204,600  3.11 

Magnitech Industries Bhd 131,200  539,232  528,736  8.05 

Press Metal Bhd 50,000  120,450  184,000  2.80 

    
1,257,564  1,247,486  18.99 

       Construction 
    Gadang Holdings Bhd 259,000  470,593  528,360  8.04 

Jaks Resources Bhd 113,000  124,680  105,090  1.60 

Kerjaya Prospek Group Bhd 90,600  156,091  183,918  2.80 

Prostasco Bhd 92,000  155,940  148,120  2.25 

Cahya Mata Sarawak Bhd 31,800  156,214  113,526  1.73 

    
1,063,518  1,079,014  16.42 

       Finance 
     Malayan Banking Bhd 32,191  295,155  262,035  3.99 

RHB Bank Bhd 34,692  178,101  176,582  2.69 

Tune Protect Group Bhd 119,300  203,279  174,178  2.65 

    
676,535  612,795  9.33 

       Plantation 
    TSH Resources Bhd 93,500  200,016  172,975  2.63 

    
200,016  172,975  2.63 
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(3) Investments (cont’d.) 
 

 
2016 (cont’d.) 

 
Quantity 

 
Cost 

Fair  
value 

Per cent 
of NAV 

  RM RM % 

     

Consumer Products 
    Berjaya Food Bhd 146,000  303,840  249,660  3.80 

Karex Bhd 45,000  122,880  108,450  1.65 

Tek Seng Holdings Bhd 150,000  159,000  180,000  2.74 

    
585,720  538,110  8.19 

       Infrastructure Project Companies 
    DIGI.Com Bhd 20,000  97,800  95,000  1.45 

OCK Group Bhd 300,500  189,050  241,903  3.68 

Sasbadi Holdings Bhd 104,000  130,000  125,840  1.92 

    
416,850  462,743  7.05 

       Ace Market 
    N2N Connect Bhd 65,000  64,188  57,200  0.87 

Sedania Innovator Bhd 520,000  197,600  150,800  2.30 

Vitrox Corporation Bhd 45,000  150,861  162,000  2.47 

    
412,649  370,000  5.64 

       Warrants 
    Bimb Holdings Bhd-WA 21,800  10,570  6,540  0.10 

Genting Bhd-WA 3,100  4,650  4,743  0.07 

OCK Group Bhd-WA 105,500                -  24,265  0.37 

Red Sena Bhd-WA 1,000,000   -  75,000  1.14 

    
15,220  110,548  1.68 

       Total equities quoted in Malaysia 
 

5,813,549  5,764,601  87.75 
 
 
Unquoted bond as at the reporting date is as detailed below: 
 

  
 

Rating 

 
 

Quantity 

  
 

Cost 

  
 

Fair value 

 Per 
cent of 

NAV 
    RM  RM  % 
2017         
         
Talam Corporation Bhd         
BAIDS 0% / 28.06.2019 B- 111,906  17,091  104,218  0.53 

         
2016         
         
Talam Corporation Bhd         
BAIDS 0% / 28.06.2019 B- 111,906  17,091  96,788  1.47 
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(4) Amount due from Manager 
 

This is an amount due from the Manager which arose from subscriptions by the unit holders. 
 

(5) Other payables 
 
 2017  2016 
 RM  RM 
    
Audit fees 7,849   8,950 
Taxation fees 3,201   3,997  
Goods and Services tax 2,173  2,635 

    
 13,223   15,582  

 
(6) Total equity/NAV attributable to unit holders 

 
   2017  2016 
 Note  RM  RM 
      
Unit holders’ capital (a)  16,955,716  5,946,658 

      
Retained earnings:      

Realised   1,732,388  591,510 
Unrealised   987,124  30,752 

   2,719,512  622,262 

      
Total equity/NAV attributable to  

unit holders 
   

19,675,228 
  

6,568,920 

 
The unrealised balance represents the net gain from stating investments at their fair values at 
the reporting date. 

 
(a) Unit holders’ capital 

 
2017 No. of units  RM 
    
As at 1 July  4,239,214  5,946,658  
Add: Creation of units 17,716,212   13,806,122  
Less: Cancellation of units (1,900,392)   (2,797,064) 

    
As at 30 June 20,055,034  16,955,716 

    
2016 No. of units  RM 
    
As at 1 July  3,067,046   4,144,643  
Add: Creation of units 2,802,559   4,275,490  
Less: Cancellation of units  (1,630,391)  (2,473,475) 

    
As at 30 June 4,239,214  5,946,658 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund  Page 27 

 

(7) Manager’s fee 
 
The Seventh Schedule of the Deed provides that the Manager's fee is computed on a daily 
basis, up to a maximum of 2.00% (2016: 2.00%) per annum of the gross NAV of the Fund 
before deducting the Manager's fee and Trustee's fee for the particular day. 
 
The Manager's fee charged for the year ended 30 June 2017 is 1.50% (2016: 1.50%) per 
annum of the NAV of the fund. The Manager's fee is subject to 6% goods and services tax 
("GST") effective 1 April 2015. 
 

(8) Trustee’s fee 
 
The Eighth Schedule of the Deed provides that the Trustee's fee is computed on a daily 
basis, up to a maximum of 0.10% (2016: 0.10%) per annum of the gross NAV of the Fund 
before deducting the Manager's fee and the Trustee's fee for that particular day, or subject to 
a minimum of RM18,000 per annum. 
 
The Trustee's fee charged for the year ended 30 June 2017 is RM18,250 (2016: RM18,300). 
The Trustee's fee is subject to 6% GST effective 1 April 2015. 
 

(9) Income tax expense 
 

 2017  2016 
 RM  RM 
Malaysian income tax:    

Tax expense for the year -   -  
Overprovision in prior years -  1,561 

    
 -   1,561  

 
Malaysian income tax is calculated at the Malaysian tax rate of 24% (2016: 24%) of the 
estimated assessable income for the financial year. In accordance with Schedule 6 of the 
Income Tax Act 1967, income earned by the Fund is exempted from tax. 
 
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to net income before tax at the statutory 
income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Fund is as 
follows: 
 
 2017  2016 
 RM  RM 
    
Net income before tax 2,097,250   297,471 

    
Tax at Malaysian tax rate of 24%  

(2016: 24%) 
 

503,340 
  

71,393 
Effect of income not subject to tax (586,462)  (113,340) 
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax  

purposes (under Section 63B of the Income 
Tax Act, 1967) 

 
 

44,185 

  
 

41,947 
Restriction on tax deductible expenses  

for the Fund 
 

38,937 
  

- 
Overprovision in prior years -  1,561 

    
Tax expense for the year -  1,561  



 

 

Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund  Page 28 

 

(10) Transactions with stockbroking companies and other financial institutions 
 
 

   

Value of  
trade  

 

Per cent 
of trade  

 

 Brokerage 
fees  

 

Per cent of 
total fees  

2017  
 

 RM  
 

 %  
 

 RM  
 

 %  

          Affin Hwang  
Investment Bank 
Berhad 

   
7,687,065  

 

          
26.45  

 
        22,156  

 
            23.44  

AmInvestment Bank  
Berhad 

 
10,041,881   

          
34.55           30,143               31.89  

CIMB Investment  
Bank Berhad 4,183,137   

          
14.39   17,895               18.93  

Hong Leong  
Investment Bank 
Berhad 254,671  

 

            
0.88  

 
2,520  

 
              2.67  

Maybank Investment  
Bank Berhad 5,395,835  

 

          
18.56  

 
16,236  

 
            17.18  

RHB Investment  
Bank Berhad 1,504,371  

 

            
5.17  

 
5,567  

 
              5.89  

   
29,066,960   

100.00  
 

94,517 
 

100.00  

          

   

Value of  
trade  

 

Per cent 
of trade  

 

 Brokerage 
fees  

 

Per cent of 
total fees  

2016 
 

 RM  
 

 %  
 

 RM  
 

 %  

          AmInvestment Bank  
Berhad 

   
4,816,910  

 
43.83  

 
        13,238  

 
33.53  

CIMB Investment  
Bank Berhad 1,915,204  

 
17.43  

 
7,751  

 
19.63  

Maybank Investment  
Bank Berhad 3,319,038  

 
30.20  

 
9,992  

 
25.31  

RHB Investment  
Bank Berhad 938,005  

 
8.54  

 
8,495  

 
21.53  

   

10,989,157  
 

100.00  
 

39,476  
 

100.00  

 
(11) Units held by related parties 

 
As at the reporting date, the total number of units held legally by related parties are as 
follows: 

 

   
 No. of units  

 
 Market value  

   
 2017  

 
 2016  

 
 2017  

 
 2016  

   
Unit 

 
Unit 

 
 RM  

 
 RM  

Directors of the Manager 
     

13,502  
 

          
6,751  

 
        13,298  

 
          10,465  

 
The directors of the Manager are of the opinion that the transactions with the related parties 
have been entered into in the normal course of business and have been established on 
terms and conditions that are not materially different from that obtainable in transactions with 
unrelated parties.  
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(12) Portfolio turnover ratio 
 

Portfolio turnover ratio is the ratio of the average acquisitions and disposals of investments of 
the Fund during the year to the average NAV of the Fund. The portfolio turnover ratio for the 
current financial year is 1.50 times (2016: 0.99 times).  

 

 

(13) Management expense ratio 
 
The management expense ratio is the ratio of the total fees and recovered expenses of the 
Fund expressed as a percentage of the Fund's average NAV. The management expense 
ratio for the current financial year is 3.58% (2016: 3.21%). 

 
 

(14) Segment reporting 
  

(a)  Business segment 
 

In accordance with the objective of the Fund, the Fund can invest up to 95% in a 
diversified portfolio of equities and equity-related securities, with a minimum of 5% 
investment in liquid assets. The following table provides an analysis of the revenue, 
results, assets and other information by business segments: 

 

 
 

Quoted 
equities 

 Unquoted 
bond 

 
Total 

2017 RM  RM RM 
     
Assets     
Segment assets     

- Investments 14,247,496  104,218 14,351,714 
- Other assets 56,172  - 56,172 

Other unallocated assets    5,305,536 

     
Total assets    19,713,422 

     
Liabilities     
Unallocated liabilities    38,194 

 
 

    

Revenue     
Segment income representing 

segment results 
 

2,399,529 
  

14,145 
 

2,413,674 

Unallocated income    29,917 
Unallocated expenditure    (346,341) 

Income before tax    2,097,250 
Income tax expense    - 

Net lncome after tax    2,097,250 
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(14)  Segment reporting (cont’d.) 
 

(a)  Business segment (cont’d.) 
 

 Quoted 
equities 

 Unquoted 
bond 

 
Total 

2016 RM  RM RM 
     
Assets     
Segment assets     

- Investments 5,764,601  96,788 5,861,388 
- Other assets 436,689  - 436,689 

Other unallocated assets    1,684,323 

     
Total assets    7,982,400 

     
Liabilities     
Unallocated liabilities    1,413,480 

     
Revenue     
Segment income representing 

segment results 
 

455,890 
  

16,358 
 

472,248 

Unallocated expenditure    (174,777) 

Loss before tax    297,471 
Income tax expense    1,561 

Net loss after tax    299,032 

 

(b)  Geographical segment 
 

As all of the Fund’s investments are located in Malaysia, the Fund does not have a 
separate identifiable geographical segment. 
 

 
(15) Financial risk management 

 
The Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks including market risk (which includes 
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Whilst these are the most 
important types of financial risks inherent in each type of financial instrument, the Manager 
and the Trustee would like to highlight that this list does not purport to constitute an 
exhaustive list of all the risks inherent in an investment in the Fund. 

 
The Fund’s overall risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse effects 
on the Fund’s financial performance. 
 
(a)     Market risk 
 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will 
fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates and equity prices.  
 
Market risk of the fund is managed through portfolio diversification across a number of 
sectors and industries. It comprises the following: 
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(15) Financial risk management 

      
(a) Market risk (con’t) 

 
Interest rate risk 

 
Cash and fixed income securities are particularly sensitive to movements in interest 
rates. When interest rates rise, the returns on cash will rise while the value of fixed 
income securities will fall and vice versa, thus affecting the NAV of the Fund. When the 
interest rate trend is anticipated to rise, the exposure to fixed income securities will be 
reduced to an acceptable level. 
 
The Fund does not have any significant interest rate risk exposure as at the reporting 
date. 
 
Price risk 
 
Price risk is the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair values of investments as the 
result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of individual shares. The 
price risk exposure arises from the Fund's investments in quoted equity instruments. 
 
The increase/(decrease) in the NAV attributable to Unit Holders as at the reporting date, 
assuming prices change by +/(-) 5% with all other variables held constant, is +/(-) 
RM717,586 (2016: RM293,069). This analysis is for illustration purpose only and is not 
an indication of future variances. 
 

(b) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk refers to the ability of an issuer or a counterparty to make timely payments of 
interest, principals and proceeds from realisation of investments. The Manager 
manages the credit risk by setting counterparty limits and undertaking credit evaluation 
to minimise such risk. 
 
None of the financial assets of the Fund were past due or impaired as at 30 June 2017 
and 30 June 2016. 

 
(c)    Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting 
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash. 
Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be 
required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than expected. The Fund is 
exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units sold to unit holders by 
the Manager are redeemable at the unit holder’s option based on the Fund’s NAV per 
unit at the time of redemption calculated in accordance with the Fund’s Deed. The 
Manager monitors the Fund’s liquidity position on a daily basis. 
 
The Manager’s policy is to always maintain a prudent and sufficient level of liquid assets 
so as to meet normal operating requirements and expected redemption requests by unit 
holders. Liquid assets comprise cash and other instruments which are capable of being 
converted into cash within 7 days.   
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(15) Financial risk management (cont’d.) 

 
(c)     Liquidity risk (cont’d.) 

 
Analysis of financial assets at FVTPL into maturity groupings is based on the expected 
date on which these assets will be realised. The Fund’s investments are highly liquid 
investments which can be realised should all of the Fund’s unit holders’ equity be 
required to be redeemed. For other assets, the analysis into maturity groupings is 
based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual 
maturity date or if earlier, the expected date on which the assets will be realised. 

 
As at the reporting date, all the financial assets of the Fund other than the unquoted 
investment, are expected to be realisable on demand within one year from the reporting 
date. As at the reporting date, all the financial liabilities of the Fund are due on demand 
or within one year from the reporting date. 
 

(16)  Financial instruments 
 

(a)  Classification of financial instruments 
  

The Fund’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis 
at either fair value or at amortised cost based on their respective classification. The 
significant accounting policies in Note 2.4 describe how the classes of financial 
instruments are measured, and how income and expenses, including fair value gains 
and losses, are recognised.  
 
The following table analyses the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund in the 
statement of financial position as at the reporting date by the class of financial 
instrument to which they are assigned, and therefore by the measurement basis: 

 
 Financial 

assets at 
FVTPL 

  
Loans and 

receivables 

 Financial 
liabilities 

at cost 

  
 

Total 
2017 RM  RM  RM  RM 
        
Assets        
Quoted equities 14,247,496  -  -  14,247,496 
Unquoted bond  104,218  -  -  104,218 
Other receivables -  202,547  -  202,547 
Cash at bank -  5,158,934  -  5,158,934 

 14,351,714  5,361,481  -  19,713,195 

        
Liabilities        
Amount due to Manager -  -  23,471  23,471 
Amount due to Trustee -  -  1,500  1,500 
Other payables -  -  11,050  11,050 

 -  -  36,021  36,021 
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(16) Financial instruments (cont’d.) 
 

(a) Classification of financial instruments (cont’d.) 
 
 Financial 

assets at 
FVTPL 

  
Loans and 

receivables 

 Financial 
liabilities 

at cost 

  
 
Total 

2016 
 

RM  RM  RM  RM 

Assets        
Quoted equities 5,764,601  -  -  5,764,601 
Unquoted bond 96,788  -  -  96,788 
Other receivables -  438,013  -  438,013 
Cash at bank -  1,682,998  -  1,682,998 

 5,861,389  2,120,852  -  7,982,241 

        
Liabilities        
Amount due to Manager -  -  1,394,898  1,394,898 
Amount due to Trustee -  -  3,000  3,000 
Other payables -  -  12,947  12,947 

 -  -  1,410,845  1,410,845 

 
(b) Financial assets that are carried at fair value 
  

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the 
measurement date under current market conditions.  

 
The fair value of quoted equities are carried at fair value and they are valued at the 
published market bid price and average bid price quoted by respective bank. 

 
For unquoted bonds, fair value has been estimated by reference to quotes published by 
the Bond Pricing Agency. 

 
(c) Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying 

amounts are reasonable approximations of fair value 
  
 Other than the financial assets at FVTPL, the other financial instruments of the Fund 

that are not carried at fair value but their carrying amounts are reasonable 
approximations of fair value due to their short term maturity. 

 
(d) Fair value hierarchy 
 

The Fund uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of 
financial instruments by valuation technique: 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
 
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data       
(unobservable inputs). 
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(16) Financial instrument (cont’d.) 
 
(d) Fair value hierarchy (cont’d.) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
During the current and previous financial year, there were no transfers between Level 1 
and Level 2 fair value measurements. 
 

 
(17) Capital management 

 
The capital of the Fund can vary depending on the demand for redemptions and 
subscriptions to the Fund.  
 
The Fund’s objectives for managing capital are: 
 
(a) To invest in investments meeting the description, risk exposure and expected return 

indicated in its prospectus; 
 
(b) To achieve consistent returns while safeguarding capital by using various investment 

strategies; 
 

(c) To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the expenses of the Fund, and to meet 
redemptions requests as they arise; and 

 
(d) To maintain sufficient fund size to make the operation of the Fund cost-efficient. 
 
No changes were made to the capital management objectives, policies or processes during 
the current and previous financial year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2017  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 RM  RM  RM  RM 
Financial assets at FVTPL:        
        
Investments 1 14,351,714  14,247,496  104,218  - 

 2016  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 RM  RM  RM  RM 
Financial assets at FVTPL:        
        
Investments 5,861,389  5,764,601  96,788  - 
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10. FUND PERFORMANCE 
For the financial year ended 30.06.17 

 
 

  30.06.2017 30.06.2016 30.06.2015 

     

Net Asset Value (RM)  19,675,228 6,568,920 4,467,873 

Units in Circulation (units)  20,055,034 4,239,214 3,067,046 

Net Asset Value / unit (RM)  0.9811* 1.5496 1.4567 

     

Highest NAV (RM)  0.9970* 1.5955 1.7171 

Lowest NAV (RM)  0.7707* 1.3111 1.2683 

     

Total Return     

- capital growth (Note 1)  26.63% 6.37% -10.91% 

- income distribution  - - - 

     

Interim Distribution     

- Gross Distribution/unit  - - - 

- Net Distribution/unit  - - - 

- Date of Distribution  - - - 

     

Final Distribution     

- Gross Distribution/unit  - - - 

- Net Distribution/unit  - - - 

- Date of Distribution  - - - 

     

Management Expense Ratio  3.58% 3.21% 3.32% 

Portfolio Turnover  1.5 times 1 times 1 times 

     

Official Launching Date  18.6.2003 18.6.2003 18.6.2003 

     
 
 

 

Note 1: We have change the basis of computation for capital growth which is as NAVper unit end – 
NAVper unit begin – 1 x 100%  for 2017. For comparative purpose, the figures for 2016 & 2015 are 
calculated based on this formula. 
 
*: Price shown is after 1 for 1 unit split 
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AVERAGE TOTAL RETURNS (in %) 
 
Average Total Return is based on NAV to NAV with distribution reinvested. Below are annualised 
average total returns of the Fund as at 30 June 17 for 1 year, 3 year, 5 year and since inception. 
 

 

1 Year 
(30/6/16-
30/6/17) 

3 Year 
(30/6/14-
30/6/17) 

5 Year 
(30/6/12-
30/6/17) 

Since 
Inception 
(18/6/03-
30/6/17) 

27.1% 6.4% 12.6% 11.6% 

 
 (Source: Financial statements Audited by Deloitte PLT for 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. Financial Statements for preceding years were  

audited by Ernst and Young )  

 
 

Basis of calculation for Annualised Average Total Return 
Annualised Average Total Return = Total Return for the period / Number of period 
 
 
ANNUAL TOTAL RETURNS (in %) 
 
Annual Total Return is based on NAV to NAV with distribution reinvested. Below is the Annual 
Total Return of the Fund for each of the financial year since inception. 

 
 

30/06/04-
30/06/05 

30/06/05-
30/06/06 

30/06/06-
30/06/07 

30/06/07-
30/06/08 

30/06/08-
30/06/09 

30/06/09-
30/06/10 

0.14% -4.47% 37.38% -11.77% 11.72% 27.60% 

 

30/06/10-
30/06/11 

30/06/11-
30/06/12 

30/06/12-
30/06/13 

30/06/13-
30/06/14 

30/06/14-
30/06/15 

30/06/15-
30/06/16 

18.79% 9.25% 26.57% 18.57% -10.60% 6.03% 

 

30/06/16-
30/06/17 

27.08% 
 

 (Source: Financial statements Audited by Deloitte PLT for 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. Financial Statements for preceding years were  

audited by Ernst and Young )  

 
 

Basis of calculation for Annual Total Return 
 
Annual Total Return = NAVt – NAVt-1 + Dividend   x  100 

----------------------------------- 
 NAVt-1  

 
 
 
 
 

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance. 
 

Unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up. 
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11. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

 
 

THE MANAGER 
Phillip Mutual Berhad (570409-K) 
 
Registered Office 
No 3-1 Jalan Indrahana 2, Off Jalan Kuchai Lama, 58200 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel : 603-7983 0354/0948/6128 
Fax : 603-7981 9912 
 
Business Office 
B-2-7 Block B Level 2 Unit 7 Megan Avenue II, 12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng, 50450 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel : 603-2783 0300 
Fax : 603-2166 6417 
 
THE TRUSTEE 
CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad (313031-A) 
 
Registered Office 
Level 13, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 0099 
Website: http://www.cimb.com 
 
Business Office 
Level 21, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 9889 
 
Trustee’s Delegate 
CIMB Group Nominee’s (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd (274740-T) 
Registered Office 
Level 13, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 8889 
Website: http://www.cimb.com 
 
Business Office 
Level 21, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 9892 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Prof. Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Ir. Jamilus Bin Md. Hussin 
Datuk Ir. Hamzah Bin Hasan  
Datin Hajjah Nona Binti Salleh  
Mr. Andy Lim Say Kiat 
En. Mohd Fadzli Bin Mohd Anas  
Mr. Lim Wen Sheong  
Mr. Lee Chay Khiong (Alternate Director to Mr. Lim Wen Sheong) 
 
 
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 
Prof. Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Ir. Jamilus Bin Md. Hussin 
Datuk Ir. Hamzah Bin Hasan 
Mr. Andy Lim Say Kiat 
Mr. Lim Wen Sheong 
 

http://www.cimb.com/
http://www.cimb.com/


 

 

Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund  Page 38 

 

INVESTMENT ADVISER 
Phillip Capital Management (Singapore) Ltd (199905233W) 
 
INVESTMENT MANAGER  
Phillip Capital Management Sdn Bhd (333567-D) 
 
COMPANY SECRETARY 
Mr. Tan Boon Seng (MAICSA 0749659) 
Compac Sdn Bhd, No 3-1, Jalan Indrahana 2, Off Jalan Kuchai Lama, 58200 Kuala Lumpur.. 
Tel:  603-7983 0354/0277/0948/6128 
Fax: 603-7981 9912 
Email: compact.cosec@gmail.com 
 
AUDITORS 

                    Deloitte PLT (LLP0010145-LCA) (AF0080) 
Level 16, Menara LGB, 1, Jalan Wan Kadir, Taman Tun Dr. Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-7610 8888 
Fax: 603-7726 8986 
Website: www.deloitte.com 
 
TAX ADVISER 
Deloitte Tax Services Sdn Bhd 
Level 16, Menara LGB, 1 Jalan Wan Kadir, Taman Tun Dr. Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-7610 8888 
Fax: 603-7725 7768 
 
SOLICITOR 
Wei Chien & Partners 
 
PRINCIPAL BANKER 
Malayan Banking Berhad (3813-K) 

 

http://www.deloitte.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Manager 

PHILLIP MUTUAL BERHAD (570409-K) 

B-2-7 Block B Level 2 Unit 7, Megan Avenue II, 12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng, 50450 Kuala Lumpur 
Tel : (603)2783 0300   Fax : (603)2166 6417 

Email : phillipmutual@poems.com.my Website : http://www.phillipmutual.com 
 

Trustee 
CIMB COMMERCE TRUSTEE BERHAD (313031-A) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30 June 2009 

 
UNAUDITED  

INTERIM REPORT 
 

 

FOR THE 6-MONTHS FINANCIAL 

PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 

mailto:phillipmutual@poems.com.my
http://www.phillipmutual.com/


   Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund 1 

 
 

CONTENTS 
 

 

 

 

Page 

1. MANAGER'S REPORT 2 

 - Type of Fund 2 

 - Category of Fund 2 

 - Investment Objective 2 

 - Performance benchmark 2 

 - Distribution Policy 2 

 - Breakdown of Unit Holdings by size 2 

 - Fund Performance 3-4 

 - Average Total Returns 4 

 - Annual Total Returns 5 

 - Investment Objective 5 

 - Fund Performance 6 

 - Market Review 7 

 - Market Outlook 7-8 

 - Investment Strategy 8 

 - Asset Allocation of the Fund 9 

 - Details of Distribution and Unit Split 9 

 - Significant Changes in the State of Affairs of The Fund 10 

 - Disclosure of Circumstances that Materially affect any Interest of The 
Unitholder 

10 

 - Soft Commission Received From Brokers 10 

   

2. TRUSTEE'S REPORT 11 

   

3. STATEMENT BY MANAGER 12 

   

4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 13 

   

5. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 14 

   

6. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CHANGES IN EQUITY 15 

   

7. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 16 

   

8. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 17 – 25 

   

9. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

26-27 

   

 
 



   Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund 2 

1. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

TYPE OF FUND 

 
Growth Fund. 
 

CATEGORY OF FUND 

 
Equity Fund.  
 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE 

 
The objective of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (PMEGF) is to provide investors with capital growth 
over the medium to long term through investments in high growth and situational stocks. 
 

PERFORMANCE BENCHMARK 

 
FBMEMAS Index. 
 

DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

 
Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund aims to achieve capital growth and distribution of income from the 
Fund will be of secondary importance. Distribution from the Fund, if any, will be reinvested into 
additional units based on the NAV per unit on payment or distribution date for purposes of capital 
growth. 
 
 

BREAKDOWN OF UNIT HOLDINGS BY SIZE 

 

Units No. of Unitholder % Unit holdings % 

5,000 & below 315 46.12 689,572 4.15 

5,001 to 10,000 137 20.06 979,611 5.90 

10,001 to 50,000 173 25.33 3,660,751 22.04 

50,001 to 500,000 55 8.05 8,487,214 51.10 

500,001 & above 3 0.44 2,792,381 16.81 

Total 683 100.00 16,609,529 100.00 
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FUND PERFORMANCE 

 
Comparative table covering last 3 financial years for industry sector  
 

 

December 2017 December 2016 December 2015 

Sector % % % 

Construction 24 17 8 

Consumer Products 10 7 3 

Finance 0 6 15 

Industrial Products 8 7 9 

Infrastructure Project Co. 0 6 2 

Plantations 0 1 4 

Properties 0 5 0 

REIT 0 3 0 

SPAC 0 0 8 

Technology 12 0 0 

Trading / Services 14 18 21 

ACE Market 13 7 10 

Warrant/TSR 5 1 3 

Unit Trusts 0 0 0 

Bond/ Loan stock 1 1 2 

Cash & Other Liquid Assets 13 21 15 

TOTAL 100 100 100 

 
 
The asset allocation reflects the opportunity in value buys after the dislocation in the financial markets. 

 
 
Below is the financial performance for last three years:  
 

 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 

    

Net Asset Value (RM) 17,661,612 7,520,079 4,883,435 

Units in Circulation (units) 16,609,529 4,625,035 3,120,675 

Net Asset Value / unit (RM) 1.0633* 1.6260 1.5648 

    

Highest NAV (RM) 1.0634* 1.6715 1.5648 

Lowest NAV (RM) 0.9466* 1.5415 1.3111 

    

Total Return    

- capital growth  30.78% 3.91% 14.08% 

- income distribution - - - 

    

Interim Distribution    

- Gross Distribution/unit - - - 

- Net Distribution/unit - - - 

- Date of Distribution - - - 
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 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 

    

Final Distribution    

- Gross Distribution/unit - - - 

- Net Distribution/unit - - - 

- Date of Distribution - - - 

    

Portfolio Composition    

- Quoted Equity Securities 85.46% 77.68% 81.39% 

- Unquoted Fixed Income Securities 0.60% 1.34% 1.95% 

- Other Liquid Assets 13.93% 20.97% 16.66% 

    

Management Expense Ratio 1.66% 1.58% 3.11% 

Portfolio Turnover 0.79 times 0.54 times 0.64 times 

    

Official Launching Date 18.6.2003 18.6.2003 18.6.2003 

    

 
Note 1: The basis of computation for capital growth is {[NAVper unit end / NAVper unit begin] – 1} x 100%.  
 
*: Price shown is after 1 for 1 unit split which takes place on 26

th
 May 2017 

 
 
AVERAGE TOTAL RETURNS (in %) 
 
Average Total Return is based on NAV to NAV with distribution reinvested. Below are annualized 
average total returns of the Funds as at 31 December 2017 for 1 year, 3 year, 5 year and since 
inception. 
 
 

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year Since Inception 

30.80% 15.74% 13.46% 12.14% 
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ANNUAL TOTAL RETURNS (in %) 
  
Annual Total Return is based on NAV to NAV with distribution reinvested. Below is the Annual Total 
Return of the Fund for each of the financial year since inception. 
 
 

18/06/03-31/12/03  
(since inception) 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

23.12% 6.67% -13.18% 14.97% 22.90% -31.63% 

 
 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

66.89% 18.28% 6.91% 14.11% 36.91% -11.43% 

 
 

2015 2016 2017 

14.08% 3.91% 30.80% 

 
 
Basis of calculation for Annual Total Return 
 
Annual Total Return = (NAVt – NAVt-1 + Dividend)   x 100 
   ----------------------------------- 
                            NAVt-1 
 
 

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance. 
 

Unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up. 
 
 
 
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE 
 
The objective of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (PMEGF) is to provide investors with high capital 
growth over the medium to long term through investments in high growth stocks and situational stocks. 

For the financial period under review, the Fund’s cumulative return was 30.83% vis-à-vis the FBM 
Emas Index’s gain of 12.87%. 
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FUND PERFORMANCE (6 MONTHS) 
 
During the period under review, the Fund which gained 8.0% managed to outperform the FBM Emas 
index which was up 2.7%. Our fund’s outperformance was attributable to our strategy to position the 
fund in small-mid-cap construction, technology and exports related stocks which have done relatively 
well during the period under review. The Fund also benefited via active portfolio management where 
we have switched out from high valuation stocks to laggard which subsequently has done well and 
contributed positively to the fund’s performance. From Jan 2017 - Dec 2017, the fund’s equity exposure 
averaged at 78.68%. 
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MARKET REVIEW 
 
Geopolitical events took center stage in 2H2017 as Saudi Arabia continued its blockade against Qatar 
and North Korea threatened the United States and Japan. There is also a delay in the 2

nd
 phase of 

Brexit negotiations as well as allegations that China and Russia have violated UN sanctions by 
supplying oil to North Korea. Nevertheless, despite the geopolitical uncertainty, most major economies 
recorded improved economic performance on sustained global growth momentum. In the United 
States, the equity market ended 2017 on a high note, with the DJIA rose to 24,719.22 points, for the 
ninth consecutive monthly gain on the back of expanding US economy, rising corporate profits and 
Trump administration’s tax cuts and other business-friendly policies. Similarly, in Japan, the equity 
market ended 2017 on a 21-year high with the Nikkei 225 rose to 22,764.94 points on the back positive 
election outcome, strong manufacturing growth and depreciating JPY.   
 
On the local front, Malaysia registered strong economic numbers in 2H2017 at 5.8% and 6.2% GDP 
growth rates for 2Q2017 and 3Q2017 respectively, beating market expectations. This was mainly 
supported by stronger private consumption, investment and net export growths. The equity market also 
performed well as the FBM KLCI ended 2017 on a positive note closing at 1,796.81 points, a 4.6% gain 
from its 7-month low in Nov. Foreigners finally turned net buyer in December after 4 consecutive 
months of attrition. Other positive drivers include the announcement of an expansionary 2018 Budget, 
strengthening of the RM and recovery of crude oil prices.   
 
The RM has strengthened against the greenback by 6.1% over the 2H2017 from RM4.29/USD on June 
30 to RM4.05/USD on 29 Dec amid broad greenback weakness attributable to Trump’s Russian 
investigation, recovery of crude oil prices and the improved economic fundamentals of Malaysia driven 
by robust economic growth, bullish foreign fund inflows, a stronger equity market performance and 
positive sentiment in the market. 
 
The Brent crude oil price ended 2017 above the USD60pb level at USD66.87pb due to rising market 
optimism that global oversupply is easing, driven by rising demand and the pledge by OPEC and non-
OPEC producers to continue reducing supply by 1.8m barrels per day for another 9 months beyond 
March 2018. Also, rig count data from Baker Hughes indicated a small drop in rig counts for the final 
week of 2017, with rigs drilling for gas in the U.S. down by two to 182, while those drilling for oil 
remained unchanged at 747. 
 
 
MARKET OUTLOOK 
 

Going into 2018, we reckon market direction will continue to be dictated by the health of the global 
economy, the strength of the RM, sustainability of crude oil prices, policy stances by Trump 
administration and the Federal Reserve; and geopolitical events.  
 

Crude oil prices had experienced a recovery in 2017. However, we are cautiously optimistic on the 
sustainability of crude oil prices as the US production has increased by 11.4% from 8.79 mil bpd a year 
ago to 9.79 mil bpd on 15 Dec. This is the highest level of production since the 1970s, the only time 
when US production breached 10 mil bpd. At this current level, the US output is close to that of top 
producers Saudi Arabia and Russia, which pump around 10 and 11 mil bpd. This trend has undermined 
the rebalancing efforts resulting from the OPEC and Russian led voluntary production cuts. It is also 
interesting to note that although the rig count has stabilised over the recent months, the US oil 
production is maintaining an upward trajectory, pointing to an increase in the efficiency of US oil rigs. In 
addition, we expect the US tax reform to encourage US producers to increase their drilling activity in 
2018 onwards, through the provision of 100% capital expenditure expensing. 

 
Meanwhile, the Malaysian 14th General Election (GE) must be called by 24 June 2018. In the run-up to 
GE14 and post polling day, we expect volatility in the equity market to be higher, in anticipation of the 
impact of political news flow on market sentiment. There should be plenty of trading opportunities 
leading up to GE14 based on historical patterns. We expect a status quo outcome i.e. a simple majority 
for Barisan Nasional (BN). A status quo outcome will support the stability of equity risk premium, and 
the valuation level of our equity market, which is trading at a trailing PE of 16.0x, in line with its 5-year 
average of 16.8x. As the election euphoria tapers off, we expect fundamentals to take priority. We are 
positive on Malaysia’s economic fundamentals in view of the expected growths in consumer spending, 
government spending, capital investment, export and a stronger RM. Also, consumer spending will be 
stronger in 1H2018 as bonuses for civil servants and pensioners as well as other direct cash aid and 
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one-off payments to target groups will be frontloaded. Also, there may be a potential upside in the 
government spending as the revenue forecast of the government is based on USD52/bbl, which is 
lower than the current oil price. The extra revenues can be used to enhance existing targeted cash 
handouts and financial assistance, which will further support domestic consumption. Investment will be 
underpinned by progress and rollout of major infrastructure and investment projects (e.g. KVMRT2, 
KVMRT3 & KVLRT3; ECRL; KL-SG HSR; Pan Borneo Highway and RAPID). Export growth will be 
supported by global economic growth recovery, thereby sustaining trade and current account 
surpluses. We also anticipate stronger RM in 2018. 

 
 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
We believe barring any unforeseen circumstances the local bourse will be firing on all cylinders in 2018 
on the back of stronger MYR, improving global economy that will continue to boost external demand, 
recovery of commodity prices, continuous foreign inflows and last but not least market usually does 
well during an election year. Furthermore, we also expect recovery in corporate earnings after few of 
years of disappointment amid improving domestic and global economy, while the new US tax bill bode 
well for the local exports which help boost the domestic economic in 2018.  
 
Arising from the above, we intend to keep our exposure high (more than 80%) and will continue 
seeking for alpha by focusing on fundamentally strong small-and-mid-cap counters with good growth 
prospects. We will however continue to lookout for any headwinds that could derail market 
performance this year and will quickly reduce on equity exposure should unexpectedly the local 
incumbent government loses the upcoming general election or when external headwinds such 
monetary policy in the US turns aggressive, the return of the protectionism sentiment in the US, a 
slowdown in the global economy and geopolitical tension in Asia turns ugly lead to a turn in market 
sentiment. 
 
 
Even though, sentiment towards export-oriented counters will be negative during a stronger ringgit, we 
believe companies which are supported by sound business operations, have high profit margins and 
those with earnings that are not mainly driven by forex gains will continue to do well. We will stay 
invested in rubber gloves stocks as they are able to pass on extra costs to customers successfully and 
stay interested in semiconductor-manufacturers which performance will be supported by strong 
financial numbers amid stronger demand and high profit margins. We still favour the domestic 
electronics-manufacturing-services players which are currency neutral and foresee sales growing in 
tandem with improving global economy and consumers’ sentiment. We will however, avoid exposure in 
plastic & packaging for now whereby earnings are expected to be impacted by the reversal of forex 
gains and higher raw material cost.  
 
 
We continue to favour construction counters which are expected to experience strong earnings delivery 
this year from jobs won in 2016, the year in which about RM50bn worth of contracts was rolled out. We 
maintain our interest in those with high outstanding construction orderbooks which provide good 
earnings visibility. Moreover, 2018 will continue to be an exciting year for the construction sector which 
will be further underpinned by more mega infrastructure projects, including MRT3, LRT3, Pan Borneo 
Highway Sabah, East Coast Railway Line, and HSR project. We intend to maintain the equity exposure 
in the construction sector for now and will gradually trim position going forward.  
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ASSET ALLOCATION OF THE FUND 
 
The asset allocation of the Fund is as follows: 
 
 
 
                                          Sector Allocation as at 31.12.2017 
 

 
 

Fund performance from July 2017 – December 2017 

 
 

 31.12.17 30.06.17 % chg 

 RM RM % 

Total NAV 17,661,612 19,675,228 -10.23 

NAV/unit* 1.0633 0.9811 8.38 

*: Price shown is after 1 for 1 unit split which takes place on 26
th
 May 2017 

 

Top Five Investments 

 

31 December 17 31 December 16 

Stock % Stock % 

Pentamaster Corporation Bhd 6.65 OCK Group Berhad 6.07 

Jhm Consolidation Bhd 5.55 Yong Tai Berhad 5.03 

Vizione Holdings Berhad 5.43 Gadang Holdings Berhad 4.42 

Green Packet Bhd 4.39 Perak Transit Berhad 4.04 

Homeritz Corporation Berhad 3.93 Malayan Banking Berhad 3.56 

 

DETAILS OF DISTRIBUTION AND UNIT SPLIT 

 
For the period under review, no distribution and unit split was made by the Fund. 
 

Construction 
24% 

Consumer Products 
10% 

Industrial Products 
8% 

Technology 
12% 

Trading / Services 
14% 

ACE Market 
13% 

Warrant/TSR 
5% 

Bond/ Loan stock 
1% 

Cash & Other 
Liquid Assets 

13% 

Sector Break down as of December 2017  
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE FUND 

For the period under review, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund not 
otherwise disclosed in the financial statements. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF CIRCUMSTANCES THAT MATERIALLY AFFECT ANY INTEREST OF THE 
UNITHOLDER 

For the period under review, there were no circumstances that materially affect any interest of the 
unitholder. 
 
 
SOFT COMMISSION RECEIVED FROM BROKERS 

During the period under review, we neither received soft commission nor rebates from any brokers by 
virtue of transaction conducted by the Fund.
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2.  TRUSTEE’S REPORT 

To the unit holders of Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund 

For the period ended 31 December 2017 (unaudited) 
 
 
We, CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad (“the Trustee”), being the Trustee for Phillip Master 
Equity Growth Fund (“the Fund”), are of the opinion that Phillip Mutual Berhad (“the Manager”), 
acting in the capacity as Manager of the Fund, has fulfilled its duties in the following manner for 
the financial period ended 31 December 2017. 

 

a) The Fund has been managed in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment 
powers of the Manager and the Trustee under the Deed, the Securities Commission 
Malaysia’s Guidelines on Unit Trust Funds, the Capital Market and Services Act 2007 (as 
amended from time to time)  and other applicable laws; 
 

b) Valuation/pricing of units of the Fund has been carried out in accordance with the Deed and 
relevant regulatory requirements; and 

 

c) Creation and cancellation of units have been carried out in accordance with the Deed and 
relevant regulatory requirements. 

 

 

 
For and on behalf of 

CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad (313031-A) 

 
 
 
 
Lee Kooi Yoke 

Chief Operating Officer 

 

 

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 
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3. STATEMENT BY MANAGER 
 

      For the interim period ended 31 December 2017 (unaudited) 
 
 

We, Datin Hajjah Nona binti Salleh and Prof. Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Ir. Jamilus bin Md. Hussin, being 
two of the Directors of Phillip Mutual Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Manager, 
the accompanying unaudited financial statements set out on pages 13 to 25, are drawn up in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial Reporting 
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of Phillip Master Equity Growth 
Fund as at 31 December 2017 and of its financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows 
for the period then ended. 

 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Manager 
Phillip Mutual Berhad 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DATIN HAJJAH NONA BINTI SALLEH                         PROF. TAN SRI DATO’ (DR) IR. 
                                                                                         JAMILUS BIN MD. HUSSIN 
 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 
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4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

 
 For the interim period ended 31 December 2017 (unaudited) 
 
 

 Note Dec 2017 Dec 2016 

  RM RM 

Assets     

Investments 3 15,201,762 5,942,324 

Amount due from stockbroking companies  926,173 - 

Amount due from Manager  163,192 32,127 

Tax recoverable  227 227 

Dividend receivable  62,508 13,817 

Interest receivable  299 - 

Other receivable  159 159 

Cash at bank  3,927,468 1,692,311 

Total assets  20,281,788 7,680,965 

 

Liabilities  

   

Amount due to stockbroking companies  180,155 116,105 

Amount due to Manager  2,426,518 30,564 

Amount due to Trustee  1,550 4,600 

Other payables  11,953 9,617 

Total liabilities  2,620,176 160,886 

 

Unit Holders’ equity 

   

    

Unit Holders’ capital  13,589,398 6,566,343 

Retained earnings  4,072,214 953,736 

Total equity/Net asset value (“NAV”) 

       attributable to Unit Holders 

 

4 

 

17,661,612 

 

7,520,079 

    

Total equity and liabilities  25,342,577 7,680,965 

    

Number of units in circulation 4(a) 16,609,529 4,625,035 

    

NAV per unit  1.0633 1.6260 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.  
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5. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

For the interim period 31.12.2017 (unaudited) 
 

 Note 01/07/2017- 01/07/2016- 

  31/12/2017 31/12/2016 

  RM RM 

Income    

Dividends  179,070 73,735 

Net realised gain on sale of investments  759,174 324,144 

Net unrealised (loss)/gain on changes in fair value 

  of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 

 
1,538,931 (38,345) 

Interest income  38,923 - 

Others Income  - 30 

  2,516,098 359,564 

Expenses    

Manager's Fee 5 134,015 55,175 

Trustee's Fee 6 9,200 9,200 

Auditors' Remuneration  4,904 3,174 

Tax Agent's Fee  1,884 2,147 

Administrative fees and expenses  144,387 45,760 

  294,390 115,456 

    

Net income before taxation  2,221,708 244,108 

Income Tax Expense  - - 

Net income after tax, representing total comprehensive 
income for the period 

 
2,221,708 244,108 

    

    

Net income after tax is made up of the following : 

Net realised income 

  

682,777 

 

282,453 

Net unrealised (loss)/income  1,538,931 (38,345) 

  2,221,708 244,108 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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6. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 

For the interim period 31.12.2017 (unaudited) 
 
 
 

  

  Unit Holders'  
 

 Retained   
 

 Total  

  

  capital  
 

 earnings  
 

 equity  

  

Note 

     

  

  RM  
 

 RM  
 

 RM  

  

 

     As at 1 July 2016 
(audited) 

 

 
5,946,658  

 
          622,262  

 
6,568,920  

Total comprehensive 
income for the year 

 

 
                        -  

 
331,474 

 
331,474 

Creation of units 
 

 
         1,985,727  

 
                        -  

 

         
1,985,727  

Cancellation of units 
 

 
        (1,366,042) 

 
                        -  

 

        
(1,366,042) 

As at 31 December 2016 
 

4b 6,566,343    953,736   7,520,079 

  

 

     As at 1 July 2017 
(audited) 

 

 16,955,716   2,719,512    19,675,228  

Total comprehensive 
income for the year 

 

 
                        -  

 
1,352,702 

 
1,352,702 

Creation of units 
 

 
         5,369,241  

 
                        -  

 

                  
5,369,241   

Cancellation of units 
 

 
        (8,735,559) 

 
                        -  

 

        
(8,735,559) 

As at 31 December 2017 
 

4b 13,589,398    4,072,214   17,661,612 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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7. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

For the interim period 31.12.2017 
 

 01/07/2017 - 01/07/2016 - 

 31/12/2017 31/12/2016 

 RM RM 

   

Cash flows from operating and investing activities   

Proceeds from sale of investments 13,562,536 3,600,415 

Purchase of investments (13,692,167) (3,533,887) 

Dividend received 130,922 835,193 

Interest income 38,925 3,387 

Talam coupon payment 4,476 - 

Manager’s fee paid (133,439) (60,002) 

Trustee's fee paid (9,150) (8,336) 

Payment of other fees and expenses (152,445) (22,085) 

Tax paid, net of tax recovered - - 

Net cash used in operating and investing activities (250,341) 814,685 

   

   

Cash flows from financing activities   

Proceeds from creations of units 5,351,964 2,056,887 

Payments for cancellations of units (6,333,089) (2,862,259) 

Net cash used in financing activities (981,125) (805,372) 

   

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,231,466) 9,313 

   

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,158,934 1,682,998 

   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,927,468 1,692,311 

   

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:   

   

Cash at bank 3,927,468 1,692,311 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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8.  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
(1) The fund, the manager and their principal activities 
 
 Phillip Master Equity Growth Fund (hereinafter referred to as "the Fund") was constituted 

pursuant to the execution of a Master Trust Deed dated 18 March 2003 as supplemented by the 
Supplemental Deeds dated 19 May 2003, 6 June 2003, and 3 August 2009 between Phillip 
Mutual Berhad as the Manager and CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad as the Trustee. The Fund 
was launched on 18 June 2003. 

 
 The principal activity of the Fund is to invest in a portfolio of investments that provide investors 

with high capital growth over the medium to long term through investment in high growth and 
situational securities. 

 
 The Manager, Phillip Mutual Berhad, is a company incorporated in Malaysia. The Manager is 

principally engaged in the management of unit trust funds. 
 
(2) Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
 2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”) as issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board (“MASB”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the Securities 
Commission Malaysia Guidelines on Unit Trust Funds in Malaysia. 
 
The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies. Historical cost is generally 
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 

  
 2.2 Changes in accounting policies  
 

  Adoption of Standards and Amendments to MFRSs 
 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year 
except for revised MFRSs and Annual Improvements issued by the MASB that are 
relevant to the Fund's operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
July 2016, as follows: 

 
Amendments to 

MFRS101 
Disclosure Initiative 

Amendments to   
   MFRS 107 

Disclosure Initiative 

Amendments to 
MFRSs   

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 

Amendments to    
   MFRSs 

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle 

 
The adoption of the amended MFRSs and Annual Improvements did not have any impact 
on the financial statements of the Fund. 

 
                    Standards and Amendments in issue but not yet effective 
 

 As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the new and revised 
Standards and Amendments relevant to the Fund which were in issue but not yet effective 
and not early adopted by the Fund are as listed below: 
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(2) Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 

 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

  
 
 
Description 

Effective for 
annual periods 

beginning on 
or after 

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB 
in July 2014) 

1 January 2018 

MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 
MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 

 
The Manager of the Fund anticipates that abovementioned Standards and Amendments 
will be adopted in the annual financial statements of the Fund when they become effective 
and that the adoption of these Standards and Amendments will have no material impact 
on the financial statements of the Fund in the period of initial application except as 
disclosed below: 
 
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
 
In November 2014, the MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
which reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of MFRS 
9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, 
impairment and hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. 
 
Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. The 
adoption of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the 
Fund's financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of the Fund's 
financial liabilities. 

 
2.3  Accounting estimates and judgments 

 
The preparation of the Fund’s financial statements requires the Manager to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting 
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or 
liability affected in the future. 

 
Judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
In the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies, the Manager is of the opinion 
that there are no instances of application of judgement which are expected to have a 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The Manager believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and 

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting date, that have a 

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year. 

2.4     Financial assets and liabilities 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. 
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(2) Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 

 2.4 Financial assets and liabilities (cont’d.) 
 

i) Financial assets 
 

The Fund determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, and 
the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and 
loans and receivables. 
 
When financial assets are recognised initially on the trade date, they are measured at 
fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not at FVTPL, directly attributable 
transaction costs. 
 
Financial assets are derecognised on the trade date when the rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
 

 Financial assets at FVTPL 
 

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL if they are held for 
trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held 
for trading are those acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near 
term. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of those financial instruments 
are recorded in "Net unrealised gain or loss on changes in fair value of 
financial assets at FVTPL". Interests earned from such instruments are 
recorded separately in "Interest income". 

 

          Loans and receivables 
 

The Fund does not have any loans throughout the financial year. Financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as receivables. Such receivables include amounts due 
from brokers and the Manager and other receivables. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, receivables are measured at amortised cost. 
 

ii) Impairment of financial assets 

 
The Fund assesses at the reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset is impaired. 

 
 Financial assets at FVTPL 

 
Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial 
difficulties of the issuer or obligor and the disappearance of an active trading 
market are considerations to determine whether there is objective evidence 
that investment securities classified as financial asset at FVPTL are impaired.
          
If a financial asset at FVTPL is impaired, an amount comprising the difference 
between its cost and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously 
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. 

   
Impairment losses on financial assets at FVTPL are not reversed in profit or 
loss in the subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

iii) Classification of realised and unrealised gains and losses 
 
Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instruments 
for the period and from reversal of prior period’s unrealised gains and losses for 
financial instruments which were realised (i.e. sold, redeemed or matured) during the 
reporting period. 
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(2) Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.) 
 

 2.4 Financial assets and liabilities (cont’d.) 
 

iii) Classification of realised and unrealised gains and losses (cont’d.) 
        

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as part of ‘at 
FVTPL’ are calculated using the weighted average method. They represent the 
difference between an instrument’s initial carrying amount and disposal amount. 

 
iv) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability. 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at 
amortised cost. The Fund includes in this category amounts due to the Manager and 
the Trustee and other payables. A financial liability is derecognised when it is settled. 

 
 2.5     Unit Holders’ capital 

 
 The Unit Holder's contributions to the Fund are classified as equity instruments. 

 
 2.6     Statement of cash flows 
 

The Fund adopts the direct method in the preparation of statement of cash flows.  
 
Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily     
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes  
in value. 
 

 2.7     Income 
 

 Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Fund and the income can be reliably measured. Income is measured at the fair value 
of consideration received or receivable. 

 
 Dividend income is recognised when the Fund’s right to receive payment is established. 
 
 Interest income, accretion of discount and amortisation of premium are recognised using 

the effective interest rate method. 
  

2.8     Taxation 
 
 Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 

from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rate and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

 
2.9     Distributions 
 
 Distributions are at the discretion of the Manager. A distribution to the Fund’s Unit Holder 

is accounted for as a deduction from realised reserves, either in the form of cash or units 
in the Fund. A proposed distribution is recognised as a liability in the year in which it is 
approved. 

 
2.10 Functional and presentation currency 

 
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Fund operates ("functional currency"). The financial statements 
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is also its functional currency. 
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(3)        Investments   
 

Investments consist of quoted equities and unquoted bond. 
 

 Dec 2017 Dec 2016 

 RM RM 

At fair value: 

  Quoted equities 

 

15,095,642 

 

5,841,743 

  Unquoted bond 106,120 100,581 

 15,201,762 5,942,324 

 
Quoted equities as at 31 December 2017 are as detailed below: 

 

  Quantity Cost Fair 
value 

Percent 
of  NAV  

   RM RM % 

EQUITIES 

 

     

Trading/Services      

Datasonic Group Bhd  232,000 266,476 269,120 1.52 

Genting Bhd  21,000 185,220 193,200 1.09 

George Kent (M) Bhd  160,000 378,851 561,600 3.18 

Oldtown Bhd  92,400 250,117 285,516 1.62 

Pestech International Bhd  331,700 532,802 580,475 3.29 

Samchem Holdings Bhd  635,000 589,899 654,050 3.70 

   2,203,366 2,543,961 14.40 

      

Warrant      

Aeon Credit Bhd-LA  276,000 317,400 336,720 1.91 

     O&C Resources Bhd-PA  3,678,000 680,050 459,750 2.60 

Pesona Metro Holdings Bhd-WC  694,900 278,336 166,776 0.94 

   1,275,786 963,246 5.45 

      

Consumer Product      

      Homeritz Corporation Berhad  767,100 751,972 694,226 3.93 

      Hong Leong Industries Bhd  12,000 112,940 116,280 0.66 

      Lii Hen Industries Bhd  60,000 221,874 216,000 1.22 

      O&C Resources Berhad  789,200 473,520 438,006 2.48 

      Poh Huat Resources Hldgs Bhd  140,000 247,087 250,600 1.42 

   1,807,393 1,715,112 9.71 

      

Industrial Products      

      Kossan Rubber Industries Bhd  36,000 248,044 291,960 1.65 

      Uchi Technologies Bhd  203,000 381,122 671,930 3.80 

      Superlon Holdings Bhd  139,400 285,676 284,376 1.61 

      V.S. Industry Bhd  70,000 138,740 210,700 1.19 

   1,053,582 1,458,966 8.26 
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(3)        Investments (cont’d.) 

 

   RM RM % 
 

 Quantity Cost Fair 
value 

Per 
cent 

of  
NAV  

   RM RM % 

Construction      

Cahya Mata Sarawak Bhd  74,000 279,118 288,600 1.63 

Ekovest Bhd  297,000 367,807 274,725 1.56 

Gabungan Aqrs Berhad  188,500 222,881 363,805 2.06 

Gadang Holdings Bhd  607,900 616,163 674,769 3.82 

Gamuda Bhd  75,000 359,710 372,000 2.11 

Hock Seng Lee Bhd  217,200        362,104 310,596 1.76 

Malaysian Resources Corp Bhd  230,000 248,100 257,600 1.46 

Pesona Metro Holdings Berhad  991,500 591,290 446,175 2.53 

Vizione Holdings Berhad  6,000,000 738,000 960,000 5.43 

Zecon Engineering Bhd  263,000 167,315 180,155 1.02 

Yong Tai Bhd  20,000 24,885 30,400 0.17 

   3,977,372 4,158,825 23.55 

      

Technology       

Green Packet Bhd  1,411,000 485,334 776,050 4.39 

KESM Industries Bhd  5,100 97,348 99,450 0.56 

Pentamaster Corporation Bhd  387,740 851,682 1,174,852 6.65 

   1,434,364 2,050,352 11.60 

 

Ace Market 

   
 

  

JF Technology Bhd 

JHM Consolidation Bhd 

Perak Transit Berhad 

 498,000 
326,500 

1,923,000 

411,067 

927,392 
437,304 

687,240 
979,500 
538,440 

3.89 

5.55 
3.05 

   1,775,763 2,205,180 12.48 

 

Total Quoted Securities in Malaysia   13,527,626 15,095,642 85.46 

 
Unquoted bond as at 31

st
 December 2017 is as detailed below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Rating 

 

Carrying 
Value Fair Value 

Per cent of  
NAV  

    RM RM % 

 BOND     

 TALAM Corporation Bhd - BAIDS     

 - 0% / 28.06.2019 B- 17,091 106,120 0.60 
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(4)   Total equity/NAV attributable to Unit Holders 
 

 
 

The unrealised balance represents the net gain from stating investments at their fair values at 
the reporting period. 

 
(a)  Unit Holders’ capital 

 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 

 No. of units RM No. of units RM 

As at 1 July (audited) 20,055,034 16,955,716 4,239,214 5,946,658 

Add : Creation of units 5,311,132 5,369,241 1,235,418 1,985,727 

Less : Cancellation of units  (8,756,637) (8,735,559) (849,597) (1,366,042) 

As at 31 December 16,609,529 13,589,398 4,625,035 6,566,343 

 
 
(5) Manager's Fee 

Article 21.1 of the Deed provides that the Manager's fee is computed on a daily basis, up to a 
maximum of 2.00% (2016: 2.00%) per annum of the gross NAV of the Fund before deducting the 
Manager's fee and Trustee's fee for the particular day. 
 
The Manager's fee charged for the interim ended 31 December 2017 is 1.50% (2016: 1.50%) per 
annum of the NAV of the fund. The Manager's fee is subject to 6% goods and services tax 
("GST") effective 1 April 2015. 

 
 
(6)  Trustee's Fee 
 

Article 21.1 of the Deed provides that the Trustee's fee is computed on a daily basis, up to a 
maximum of 0.10% (2016: 0.10%) per annum of the gross NAV of the Fund before deducting the 
Manager's fee and the Trustee's fee for that particular day, or subject to a minimum of RM18,000 
per annum. 
 
The Trustee's fee charged for the interim ended 31 December 2017 is RM9,200 (2016: 
RM9,200). The Trustee's fee is subject to 6% GST effective 1 April 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  Dec 2017 Dec 2016 

  RM RM 

Unit Holders' capital  13,589,398 6,566,343 

Retained earnings    

- Realised  2,346,340 766,793 

- Unrealised  1,725,874 186,943 

  4,072,214 953,736 

    

Total equity/NAV attributable to Unit 
Holders 

  

17,661,612 

 

7,520,079 
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(7)  Transactions with stockbroking companies and other financial institutions 
 

 Value of 
trade 

Per cent 
of total 

trade 

Brokerage 
fees & 

commission 

Per cent of 
total fees 

and 
commission 

 RM % RM % 

Affin Hwang Investment Bank Berhad 5,234,353 18 13,316 14 

AmInvestment Bank Bhd 13,558,166 48 40,786 42 

CIMB Investment Bank Bhd 856,987 3 4,260 4 

Kenanga Investment Bank Bhd 865,563 3 4,305 4 

Maybank Investment Bank Bhd 7,812,702 28 35,214 36 

 28,327,771 100 97,880 100 

 
 
(8)  Units held by related parties (Parties related to the Manager) 
   

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of units held legally by Directors of the Manager is 
13,502 with market value RM14,358. 

 
 

(9)  Portfolio Turnover Ratio 
 
 Portfolio turnover ratio is the ratio of the average acquisitions and disposals of investments of the 

Fund during the year to the average NAV of the Fund. The portfolio turnover ratio for the current 

financial period is 0.79 times (2016: 0.54 times).  
 
 
(10)  Management Expense Ratio 

 
 Management expense ratio is the ratio of the total fees and recovered expenses of the Fund 

expressed as a percentage of the Fund's average NAV. The management expense ratio for the 
current financial period is 1.66% (2016: 1.58%). 

 
 

(11)  Segmental reporting 
 

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Fund's 
risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by the different types of investments made. 

 
(i) Business segment 

 
In accordance with the objective of the Fund, the Fund can invest up to 95% in a diversified 
portfolio of equities and equity-related securities, with a minimum of 5% investment in liquid 
assets. The following table provides an analysis of the revenue, results, assets and other 
information by business segments: 
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 (11) Segmental reporting (cont’d.) 
 

(i) Business segment (cont’d.) 
 

 
 Quoted Unquoted  
 Securities Securities Total 

As at Dec 2017 RM RM RM 

 
Assets 

   

Segment assets    

- Investments 15,095,642 106,120 15,201,762 

- Other assets 5,079,640 - 5,079,640 

Other unallocated assets   386 

   20,281,788 

 
Liabilities    

Unallocated liabilities   2,620,176 

    
 
Revenue 

   

Segment income representing    
   segment results 2,511,622 4,476 2,516,098 

Unallocated expenditure   (294,390) 

Income before tax   2,221,708 
Income tax expense   - 
Net income after tax    2,221,708 

 
 

 Quoted Unquoted  

 Securities Securities Total 

As at Dec 2016 RM RM RM 
 
Assets 

   

Segment assets    

- Investments 5,841,743 100,581 5,942,324 
- Other assets 1,738,255 - 1,738,255 

Other unallocated assets   386 

   7,680,965 

 
Liabilities    

Unallocated liabilities   160,886 

    
 
Revenue 

   

Segment income representing    
   segment results 356,177 3,387 359,564 

Unallocated expenditure   (115,456) 

Income before tax   244,108 
Income tax expense   - 

Net income after tax    244,108 

    
 
 

(i) Geographical segment 
 

As all of the Fund’s investments are located in Malaysia, the Fund does not have separate 
identifiable geographical segment. 
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9.  CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
 

THE MANAGER 
Phillip Mutual Berhad (570409-K) 
 
Registered Office 
No 3-1 Jalan Indrahana 2, Off Jalan Kuchai Lama, 58200 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel : 603-7983 0354/0948/6128 
Fax : 603-7981 9912 
 
Business Office 
B-2-7 Block B Level 2 Unit 7 Megan Avenue II, 12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng, 50450 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel : 603-2783 0300 
Fax : 603-2166 6417 
 
THE TRUSTEE 
CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad (313031-A) 
 
Registered Office 
Level 13, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 0099 
Website: http://www.cimb.com 
 
Business Office 
Level 21, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 9889 
 
Trustee’s Delegate 
CIMB Group Nominee’s (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd (274740-T) 
Registered Office 
Level 13, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 8889 
Website: http://www.cimb.com 
 
Business Office 
Level 21, Menara CIMB, Jalan Stesen Sentral 2, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, 50470 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-2261 8888 
Fax: 603-2261 9892 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Prof. Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Ir. Jamilus Bin Md. Hussin 
Datuk Ir. Hamzah Bin Hasan  
Datin Hajjah Nona Binti Salleh  
Mr. Andy Lim Say Kiat 
En. Mohd Fadzli Bin Mohd Anas  
Mr. Lim Wen Sheong  
Mr. Lee Chay Khiong (Alternate Director to Mr. Lim Wen Sheong) 
 
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 
Prof. Tan Sri Dato' (Dr) Ir. Jamilus Bin Md. Hussin 
Datuk Ir. Hamzah Bin Hasan 
Mr. Andy Lim Say Kiat 
Mr. Lim Wen Sheong 
 
INVESTMENT ADVISER 
Phillip Capital Management (Singapore) Ltd (199905233W) 
 
 

http://www.cimb.com/
http://www.cimb.com/
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INVESTMENT MANAGER  
Phillip Capital Management Sdn Bhd (333567-D) 
 
COMPANY SECRETARY 
Mr. Tan Boon Seng (MAICSA 0749659) 
Compac Sdn Bhd, No 3-1, Jalan Indrahana 2, Off Jalan Kuchai Lama, 58200 Kuala Lumpur.. 
Tel:  603-7983 0354/0277/0948/6128 
Fax: 603-7981 9912 
Email: compact.cosec@gmail.com 
 
AUDITORS 

                    Deloitte PLT (LLP0010145-LCA) (AF0080) 
Level 16, Menara LGB, 1, Jalan Wan Kadir, Taman Tun Dr. Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-7610 8888 
Fax: 603-7726 8986 
Website: www.deloitte.com 
 
TAX ADVISER 
Deloitte Tax Services Sdn Bhd 
Level 16, Menara LGB, 1 Jalan Wan Kadir, Taman Tun Dr. Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur. 
Tel:  603-7610 8888 
Fax: 603-7725 7768 
 
SOLICITOR 
Wei Chien & Partners 
 
PRINCIPAL BANKER 
Malayan Banking Berhad (3813-K) 

 
 

http://www.deloitte.com/

